AFCEE ECOS Pre-Solicitation Conference 

and Small Business Training Session

July 16th & 17th 

Questions and Answers

1. Regarding bonding, will reference be made in RFP as to the bonding capacity requirements and which projects will be required to have bonding?

In accordance with FAR 28.102-1, payment & performance bonds are required for all construction contracts exceeding $100K.  As such, the following has been added to the RFP and will be evaluated under the Mission Capability Factor, Financial Capability subfactor:

Section L, Para 4.3.5:

(d)
Describe the bonding ability of the prime.

(1) Provide proof of excess bonding capacity of $5M with bonding capability letters from an approved surety listed with the Department of Treasury.  Letters must be notarized and signed by someone who can represent the surety.  Letters signed by agents are unacceptable, unless accompanied by a Power of Attorney granting proper authority to the agent.

(2) Excess bonding capacity is defined by the aggregate ceiling between current bonding and bonding ability.

Section M, Para 2.1.5:  The Government will evaluate the team’s financial capability.  This subfactor will be considered passing with:

(b) Prime’s demonstrated proof of excess bonding capacity to implement a nationwide construction program and RBPD program that may include both environmental and traditional construction requirements.

(1) To be considered, the contractor must have a letter from a surety on surety letterhead that says the contractor has a relationship with the company and can obtain excess bonding of $5M.

(2) Excess bonding capacity is defined by the aggregate ceiling between current bonding and bonding ability.

2. What are the ‘target’ financial ratios which will be considered acceptable/passing?

Per DCAA Contract Audit Manual 14-304d(2), at a minimum, the following ratios should be considered when making a financial condition risk assessment: 

a. Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities).  This ratio measures the degree to which current assets cover current liabilities.  It is a test to determine the ability of a company to liquidate its current obligations and to finance operations.    

b. Quick Ratio (Quick Assets/Current Liabilities).  This ratio measures the degree to which “quick” assets (cash, short term investments, accounts receivable) cover current liabilities.  It measures a company’s ability to pay off its short-term obligations from assets readily convertible to cash.    

c. Capital Turnover Ratio (Working Capital/Total Assets).  Working Capital is defined as the difference between current assets and current liabilities.  The working capital to total assets ratio is a measure of the net liquid assets of the company.  

d. Return on Investment Ratio (Net Income/Total Assets).  This ratio measures economic performance, and is used as an indicator of management’s effectiveness, a measure of a company’s ability to earn a satisfactory return on investment, and a method of projecting earnings.  

e. Debt to Equity Ratio (Total Debt/Equity).  All liabilities (both short-term and long-term) and all stockholders’ equity, including retained earnings, are included in the calculation.  This ratio is a measure of the debt burden on the contractor and assists in determining the relative size of creditors compared to the claims of owners.  High levels of debt can restrict management and increase risk to the owners.     

f. Cash Flow to Debt Ratio (Cash Flow (Net Income + Depreciation + Depletion + Amortization)/Total Debt).  This ratio is an indicator of the adequacy of available funds to satisfy debt obligations.  

g. Cash Flow to Sales Ratio (Cash from Operations/Sales).  This ratio shows the amount of cash realized from each dollar of sales.  It analyzes the effectiveness of the contractor’s use of its cash position to generate revenue.  

h. Cash Flow Return on Assets Ratio (Cash from Operations/Total Assets).  The cash flow return on assets measures the cash generation from assets (as opposed to income generated from assets).  

i. Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (Cash from Operations/[Long Term Debt Paid + Purchases of Assets + Dividends Paid]). The cash flow adequacy ratio measures the contractor's ability to generate cash sufficient to cover its primary cash requirements to pay its debts, reinvest in its operations and make distributions (dividends) to owners.  

j. Debt Coverage Ratio (Total Debt/Cash from Operations).  The debt coverage ratio estimates how many years it will take to retire all debt at the current level of cash from operations. 

In addition, any other standard industry ratios may also be considered in the assessment of financial condition risk.
3. Why restrict contract to just environmental funding?  To be customer responsive to needs of bases and MAJCOMs, you should have appropriate clauses to take “any/all fund cites” similar to SABER contracts.

The SOW Section 1.1 has been changed to include the following by a brief mention:  Family Housing, Environmental Restoration, Aircraft Procurement, Missile Procurement, Military Construction, Research, Development, Test and Evaluation, and Operations and Maintenance.  These are the titles of the fund account groups allocated to the General Funds of the component services and federal agencies served by AFCEE.

4. Why aren’t there any 8a set-asides in this procurement?

The previous acquisition, EMCOS, was 100% set-aside for small business.  It is atypical for the Government to then further the restriction on follow-on acquisitions.
5. In June 10 info it states that 88% of EMCOS work was construction.  Can you provide a breakdown of the 88% between environmental and non-environmental?

While all of the EMCOS construction projects were environmentally related, approximately 15% of the dollars executed were for environmental type tasks/processes and 85% were for more traditional construction type tasks/processes.

6. Expand on Bonding Requirements under ECOS in the RFP.

Refer to Question 1.

7. Restate position on evaluation of worldwide capability.  Is this contract to be used CONUS/OCONUS?

The ECOS contract will have worldwide capability.  Since the requirement for overseas work is currently unknown and is anticipated to be a small percent of the ECOS workload, no information is being required or will be evaluated regarding an Offeror’s OCONUS capability.

8. How important is selection process to have a team to complete nationwide coverage?  How AFCEE can expect a small business, which this solicitation is set aside, to fulfill this requirement?

The requirement is that the Offeror and teaming partners together be able to fill in half of the blocks on the Nationwide Coverage Spreadsheet.  It is not expected that as a small business your company has worked all these task categories in every state.  The block can be checked if your company or a teaming partner has simply participated in, not necessarily managed, any of the ten (10) tasks in any of the states within the past five (5) years.

9. Section L – PPQ #12 (Table of Services):  The areas listed in the table do not cover all areas in the SOW (i.e. force protection, homeland security, etc).  Can this table be expanded to include the opportunity to evaluate past performance in all SOW areas?

It was intended that all of the SOW areas be distributed into one of the Task Categories in the Table of Services.  We have gone through and ensured that they are all listed.  For example, the Table of Services includes force protection and homeland security under Task Category 1.  

10. Electronic Copies:  Please clarify that we are to submit PDFs only, with the exception of the pricing and the directories of the CDs.

The following table has been added to Section L, paragraph 2.3.10.3(g) to clarify:

	CD-ROM TITLE
	FORMAT

	Master 
	PDF searchable text 

	Volume I – Contract Documentation
	PDF searchable text

	Volume II – Mission Capability
	Microsoft Office 2000

	Volume III – Relevant Present/Past Performance
	PDF searchable text

	Volume IV – Cost/Price
	Microsoft Office 2000 (Excel)


11. May we use Task Orders as projects?  May we combine multiple task orders at one installation into one write up (if they are under one contract)?

Yes, task orders may be used as projects.  One project can include multiple task orders if they are under the same contract.

12. Bonding:  Will there be a section on bonding abilities?

Refer to Question 1.

13. Workforce and Project Tables (Sec L, Para 4.3.2 & 4.3.3):  Do you want these in a Word table or on an Excel spreadsheet?

Excel spreadsheets are preferred.

14. Electronic Copies (Sec L, Para 2.3.10.3(4)):  “Each directory shall contain a MS Word file with the master TOC for that directory.”  Do you mean you want a PDF and Word file of the Master TOC on all the CDs?  Please clarify.

No.  The master CD should contain the Master TOC file in PDF searchable text format.  The remaining four (4) CDs shall include a Master TOC file in Microsoft Word format.  Sec L, paragraphs 2.3.10.3(d) and (g) have been revised to reflect this clarification.

15. Do you want just PDFs except where indicated otherwise (above)?

See answer for Question 10.

16. Font sizes (Sec L, Para 2.3.11.1(e)(2)):  “Fonts shall be no smaller than 10 pt for text in tables, charts, graphs & figures.”  (Sec L, Para 2.3.11.1 (e)(3)):  “Font for each table cell, graph or figure labels shall be no smaller than 8 pt.”  Please clarify.

Paragraph 2.3.11.1(e)(2) has been deleted.  Font size of 8 pt is allowable for text in table cells, charts, graphs and figure labels.

17. Double sided printing and foldouts (Sec L, Para 2.3.11.1 (a) & 2.3.11.2(b)):  Please verify that a blank backside of a foldout is NOT counted in the page count.

Blank pages will not be counted.

18. Workforce Stability (Sec L, Para 4.3.2):  Do the years of work on SOW task areas have to be consecutive or can they be cumulative years within a person’s career?

The years worked can be cumulative and do not have to be consecutive, although the experience must all be within the last five (5) years.

19. Project (Sec L, Para 4.3.3(b)):  “Offeror shall list the projects performed.”  Do you want a list of all the projects in those categories; do you want an indication by “X” in the state blocks that you have done work there; or do you want a number of projects within the scope areas by state?  Example seems to indicate an “X” indicating work there, with a total number of projects (by scope area).

The Nationwide Coverage Spreadsheet (Attachment L-4 of the solicitation) is to be filled out with an X in the appropriate blocks to demonstrate the state in which any of the ten (10) relevant task categories were performed.  In the uppermost row, entitled “Number Total Projects”, the Offeror is to provide the total number of projects completed within each task category.  

20. Presentation of L-3s:  Please clarify that you want the L-3s only once.  Section 4.3.2 merely explains the stability of individuals with a company; Sections 4.3.4 merely explains the experience of individuals across the scope areas.

Attachment L-3 for Subfactor 1.2, Workforce Stability, should have only the first 3 (three) columns completed (Name, Classification, Stability).

Attachment L-3 for Subfactor 1.4, Experience, should have all columns completed (Name, Classification, Stability, Category).

21. Page limitations (Sec L, Para 5.3(a)(b)):  These sections indicate you want a narrative describing your team, relevancy to the solicitation, and organizational structure history.  Is there a page limitation for this section?

The Narrative will be limited to three (3) pages and shall contain the Past Performance Summary, Relevancy to Mission Capability Subfactors and Organizational Structure Change History.  Reference Draft #2 of the RFP, Section L, Paragraph 5.3.1, for this clarification.

22. Early Submittal of PPIs (Sec L, Para 5.3.2.1(j)):  Are the PPIs requested or required to be submitted 15 days in advance?  Please clarify whether the 15 days is “working” or “days”.  What happens if we don’t turn in our PPIs within the “15 days before” submission date?

We are requesting all PPIs be submitted 15 calendar days prior to proposal due date.  As this is only a request, there will be no penalty for submitting the PPIs with the entirety of your proposal on the proposal due date.

23. PPQs (Sec L, Para 5.3.2.2(a)):  PPQs are automatically sent to a reference.  Sent by whom?  If it is automatically sent by AFCEE, what triggers it?  If it is automatically sent by AFCEE, how do we input the information to facilitate our references filling them out?  IE, all of Part I?  What happens to the PPQs?  Are they submitted with the proposal?  Do we provide a placeholder tab?

Once the Offeror fills in the online PPI sheets, the PPQ management system being created will automatically send an email to the reference provided (for this reason it is extremely important that valid email addresses be provided for each reference).  Currently, it is anticipated that a memo sent to the reference identified will contain a link to the ECOS PPQ website, complete with a user id and password.  Once logged onto the system, the reference will be asked to confirm the information provided by the Offeror on Part I of the PPI sheet.  Part I information will have been populated with the information provided by the Offeror upon submission of their PPI sheet.  The reference will have the option of editing any of the information contained in Part I.  When the PPQ has been completed, the reference will click on a submit button and the information provided will be stored.  When the PPQ is submitted, the PPQ Status table located on the PPI Cover Sheet will automatically update.  It is here that the Offeror can then determine how many PPQs have been submitted.  At the time of this conference, there were no plans to provide the names of the individuals who still had PPQs outstanding.  We are working with our webmaster to determine where and if this information can be provided.  

24. In regard to the GIS element of the currently advertised ECOS contract, are you looking for an Arc Info format or Arc View?

We will accept spatial data in both formats as AFCEE has done in the past.
25. From looking at the SOW, it looks like part of the work of ECOS could be service orientated and would fall under the section 803 requirments, i.e. competitive bid the work between the 7 selected contractors. What is AFCEE's position on ECOS and Section 803?

In accordance with DFARS 216.505-70, Section 803 competition requirements will apply to each ECOS order for services exceeding $100,000. The ECOS contract will include both Construction and Environmental Services task orders.  In most cases, the Fair Opportunities selection criteria (Clause PKV-H10) will be used to select the contractor to perform Services task orders $100K and under, and all Construction task orders. 

As required by DFARS 216.505.70, and in compliance with Section 803 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2002, each order for services exceeding $100,000 shall be placed on a competitive basis.  For competition, Contracting Officer—

(1) Provides a fair notice to all contractors offering the required services under ECOS

(2) Affords all contractors responding to the notice a fair opportunity to submit an offer and have that offer fairly considered.

(3) Will keep contractor submission requirements to a minimum;

(4) May use streamlined procedures, including oral presentations;

(5) Shall consider price or cost under each order as one of the factors in the selection decision; and

(6) The contracting officer will consider past performance on earlier orders under the contract, including quality, timeliness, and cost control.

